UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
SOUTHERN DI STRI CT OF TEXAS

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA, )
)

Plaintiff, )

V. ) Cl VI L ACTI ON NO.

)

CONOCO | ncor por at ed, )
)

Def endant . )

)

COMPLAI NT

The United States of Anerica, by the authority of the
Attorney General of the United States and through the
under si gned attorneys, acting at the request of the
Adm ni strator of the United States Environnental Protection
Agency (“EPA"), alleges:

NATURE OF ACTI ON

1. This is a civil action brought agai nst Conoco
| ncor porated, (“Conoco” or “Defendant”), pursuant to Section
113(b) of the Clean Air Act (“CAA” or the Act), 42 U S.C. 8
7413(b), for alleged environnental violations at four
petrol eumrefineries owned and operated by Conoco. One or
nore of the refineries have been and are in violation of EPA s
regul ations inplenmenting the followng Clean Air Act statutory
and regul atory requirements applicable to the petrol eum

refining industry: Part C of Title | of the Act, 42 U S.C. §



7470- 7492, Prevention of Significant Deterioration (“PSD");
Section 173 of Part D of the Act, 42 U S.C. 88 7503-7515, New
Source Review (“NSR’); New Source Performance Standards
(“NSPS”"), 40 C.F.R Part 60, Subparts J and QQQ Leak
Detection and Repair (“LDAR’), 40 C.F.R Parts 60 and 63;
Nat i onal Em ssion Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
(“NESHAP”) for Benzene, 40 C.F. R Part 61; and the Col orado,
Loui si ana, Montana, and Ckl ahoma state inplenentation plans
(“SIPs”) which incorporate and/or inplenent the above-Ilisted
federal regul ations.

2. The United States seeks an injunction ordering
Def endant to conply with the above statutes and the | aws and
regul ati ons promul gated thereunder, and civil penalties for
Def endant’ s past and ongoi ng vi ol ati ons.

JURI SDI CTI ON _AND VENUE

3. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter
of this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 1331, 1345 and 1355;
Section 113(b) of the CAA.

4. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28
U.S.C. 8 1391(c) and Section 113(b) of the CAA, 42 U S.C.
8§ 7413(b) because the Defendant is |located and is doing

business in this district.



NOTI CE TO STATE

5. Notice of the comencenment of this action has been
given to the States of Col orado, Louisiana, Mntana, and
Okl ahoma as required under Section 113(b) of the CAA, 42
U.S.C. § 7413(b).

DEFENDANTS

6. Conoco owns and operates four (4) donestic petrol eum
refineries |ocated as follows:

Commerce City, Colorado (“Denver Refinery”)

West | ake, Louisiana (“Lake Charles Refinery”)?

Billings, Montana (“Billings Refinery”)

Ponca City, Oklahoma (“Ponca City Refinery”)

7. The Defendant is a “person” as defined in Section
302(e) of the CAA, 42 U S.C. 87602(e), and the federal and
state regul ati ons pronul gated pursuant to these statutes.

8. The petroleumrefining process at the Defendant’s
four refineries results in em ssions of significant quantities
of regulated air pollutants, including nitrogen oxides
(“NOx”), carbon monoxide (“CO'), particulate matter (“PM),
sul fur dioxide (“SO2"), as well as volatile organic conmpounds

(“VOCs”) and hazardous air pollutants (“HAPs”), including

1 This facility includes the Excel Paral ubes facility
operated and partly owned by Conoco.
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benzene. The primary sources of these em ssions are the fluid
catalytic cracking units (“FCCUs”), process heaters and
boilers, the sulfur recovery plants, the wastewater treatnent
system fugitive em ssions from | eaking conponents, and flares
t hroughout the refinery.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND
CLEAN Al R ACT REQUI REMENTS

9. The Clean Air Act established a regulatory schene
desi gned to protect and enhance the quality of the nation's
air so as to pronmote the public health and wel fare and the
productive capacity of its population. Section 101(b)(1l) of
the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7401(b)(1).

10. Prevention of Significant Deterioration. - Section

109 of the Act, 42 U . S.C. §8 7409, requires the Adm nistrator
of EPA to pronul gate regul ati ons establishing primry and
secondary national ambient air quality standards (" NAAQS" or
"anmbient air quality standards”) for certain criteria air

pol lutants. The primary NAAQS are to be adequate to protect
the public health, and the secondary NAAQS are to be adequate
to protect the public welfare, fromany known or antici pated
adverse effects associated with the presence of the air

pol lutant in the anmbient air.



11. Section 110 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7410, requires
each state to adopt and submt to EPA for approval a State
| rpl enmentation Plan ("SIP") that provides for the attai nment
and mai nt enance of the NAAQS.

12. Under Section 107(d) of the Act, 42 U S.C
§ 7407(d), each state is required to designate those areas
within its boundaries where the air quality is better or worse
than the NAAQS for each criteria pollutant, or where the air
gqual ity cannot be classified due to insufficient data. These
desi gnati ons have been approved by EPA and are | ocated at 40
C.F.R Part 81. An area that nmeets the NAAQS for a particul ar
pol lutant is classified as an "attainment" area; one that does
not is classified as a "non-attai nnent" area.

13. Part Cof Title I of the Act, 42 U S.C. 88 7470-
7492, sets forth requirenents for the prevention of
significant deterioration ("PSD') of air quality in those
areas designated as attaining the NAAQS standards. These
requirenments are designed to protect public health and
wel fare, to assure that economic growth will occur in a manner
consistent with the preservation of existing clean air
resources and to assure that any decision to permt increased
air pollution is made only after careful evaluation of all the

consequences of such a decision and after public participation
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in the decision-nmaking process. These provisions are referred
to herein as the "PSD program "

14. Section 165(a) of the Act, 42 U S.C. § 7475(a),
prohi bits the constructi on and subsequent operation of a mjor
emtting facility in an area designated as attai nment unless a
PSD permt has been issued. Section 169(1) of the Act, 42
US C 8 7479(1), defines "major emtting facility" as a
source with the potential to emt 250 tons per year (“tpy”) or
nore of any air pollutant.

15. As set forth at 40 CF.R 8 52.21(k), the PSD
program generally requires a person who wi shes to construct or
nodify a mpjor emtting facility in an attainnment area to
demonstrate, before construction commences, that construction
of the facility will not cause or contribute to air pollution
in violation of any ambient air quality standard or any
specified increnmental anount.

16. As set forth at 40 CF.R 8 52.21(i), any nmjor
emtting source in an attainment area that intends to
construct a mmjor nodification nmust first obtain a PSD permt.
"Major nodification" is defined at 40 CF. R 8 52.21(b)(2)(i)
as neani ng any physical change in or change in the nethod of
operation of a major stationary source that would result in a

significant net em ssion increase of any criteria pollutant
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subj ect to regulation under the Act. "Significant” is defined
at 40 CF.R § 52.21(b)(23)(i) in reference to a net em ssions
increase or the potential of a source to emt any of the
following criteria pollutants, at a rate of em ssions that
woul d equal or exceed any of the follow ng: for ozone, 40 tons
per year of volatile organic conmpounds (“VOC's); for carbon
nonoxi de (“CO’), 100 tons per year; for nitrogen oxides
(“NQ.-), 40 tons per year; for sulfur dioxide (“SO2"), 100 tons
per year, (hereinafter “criteria pollutants”).

17. As set forth at 40 CF.R 8 52.21(j), a new ngjor
stationary source or a mpjor nodification in an attai nment
area shall install and operate best avail able control
technol ogy ("BACT") for each pollutant subject to regulation
under the Act that would have the potential to emt in
significant quantities.

18. Section 161 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7471, requires
state i nplenmentation plans to contain em ssion |imtations and
such ot her nmeasures as may be necessary, as determ ned under
t he regul ations pronul gated pursuant to these provisions, to
prevent significant deterioration of air quality in attainment
ar eas.

19. A state may conply with Section 161 of the Act

ei ther by being del egated by EPA the authority to enforce the
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federal PSD regul ations set forth at 40 C.F. R 8 52.21, or by
having its own PSD regul ati ons approved as part of its SIP by
EPA, which nust be at |east as stringent as those set forth at
40 C.F.R. 8§ 51.166.

20. Part D of Title | of the Act, 42 U S.C. 8§ 7501-
7515, sets forth provisions which direct States to include in
their SIPs requirenments to provide for reasonabl e progress
towards attai nnent of the NAAQS in nonattainnment areas.
Section 8§ 172(c) (5) of the Act, 42 U.S.C.§ 7502(c) (5),
provi des that these SIPs shall require New Source Review
(“NSR’) pernmits for the construction and operation of new or
nodi fied maj or stationary sources anywhere in the
nonattai nment area, in accordance with Section 173 of the Act,
42 U.S.C. §8 7503, in order to facilitate “reasonable further
progress” towards attainment of the NAAQS.

21. Section 173 of Part D of the Act, 42 U S.C. § 75083,
requires that in order to obtain such a permt the source
must, anong other things: (a) obtain federally enforceable
enmi ssion offsets at | east as great as the new source*s
em ssions; (b) conply with the | owest achi evable enmi ssion rate
as defined in Section 171(3) of the Act, 42 U S.C. § 7501(3);
and (c) analyze alternative sites, sizes, production

processes, and environnmental control techniques for the
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proposed source and denonstrate that the benefits of the
proposed source significantly outweigh the environnental and
soci al costs inposed as a result of its location,
construction, or nodification.

22. As set forth in 40 CF.R 8§ 52.24, no mmjor
stationary source shall be constructed or nodified in any
nonattai nment area as designated in 40 C.F. R Part 81, Subpart
C (“nonattai nnent area”) to which any SIP applies, if the
em ssions from such source will cause or contribute to
concentrations of any pollutant for which a NAAQS is exceeded
in such area, unless, as of the tine of application for a
permt for such construction, such plan neets the requirenents
of Part D, Title I, of the Act.

23. A state may conply with Section 172 and 173 of the
Act by having its own nonattai nnent new source review
regul ati ons approved as part of its SIP by EPA, which nust be
at | east as stringent as those set forth at 40 C F. R
§ 51. 165.

24. Fl ari ng and New Source Performnce Standards. -

Section 111 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7411, requires EPA to
promul gate standards of performance for certain categories of
new air pollution sources (“New Source Performance Standards”

or “NSPS”). Pursuant to Section 111(b), 42 U. S.C. § 7411(b),
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EPA promul gat ed general regul ati ons applicable to all NSPS
source categories. Those general regulations are set forth at
40 C.F. R Part 60 Subpart A.

25. EPA’s NSPS regul ati ons applicable to petrol eum
refineries, including requirenents for inplenenting and
utilizing good air pollution control practices at all tines,
are set forth at 40 CF.R. Part 60 Subpart J. The NSPS
requi renents establish an emssion limt of 250 ppm of SO2
fromthe sulfur recovery plants, which represents a 99. 9%
reduction of SO2.

26. Leak Detection and Repair. - Section 112 of the CAA,

42 U.S.C. § 7412, requires EPA to pronul gate em ssion
standards for certain categories of sources of hazardous air
pol lutants (“National Em ssion Standards for Hazardous Air
Pol l utants” or “NESHAPs”). Pursuant to Section 112(d) of the
CAA, 42 U. S.C. 8§ 7412(d), EPA promul gated nati onal em ssion
st andards for equi pnent | eaks (fugitive em ssion sources).
Those regul ations are set forth at 40 C.F. R Parts 61 Subpart
J and V, and Part 63 Subparts F (National Em ssion Standards
for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants fromthe Synthetic
Organi ¢ Chem cal Manufacturing Industry), H (NESHAP f or

Equi pment Leaks)and CC (NESHAP for Petrol eum Refineries) and

Part 60 Subparts VV and GGG
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27. The focus of the LDAR programis the refinery-w de
inventory of all possible |eaking valves, the regular
nmonitoring of those valves to identify |eaks, and the repair
of | eaks as soon as they are identified.

28. Benzene Waste NESHAP. - The CAA requires EPA to

establish em ssion standards for each *“hazardous air
pol lutant” (“HAP”) in accordance with Section 112 of the CAA,
42 U.S.C. § 7412.
29. In March 1990, EPA promul gated nati onal em ssion

st andards applicable to benzene-contai ni ng wast ewat ers.
Benzene is a listed HAP and a known carci nogen. The benzene
waste regul ations are set forth at 40 C.F. R Part 61 Subparts
FF, (National Em ssion Standard for Benzene Waste Operations).
Benzene is a naturally-occurring constituent of petrol eum
product and petrol eum waste and is highly volatile. Benzene
enm ssions can be detected anywhere in a refinery where the
petrol eum product or waste materials are exposed to the
anmbient air.

30. Pursuant to the Benzene Waste NESHAP, refineries are
required to tabulate the total annual benzene (“TAB”) content
in their wastewater. |If the TAB is over 10 negagrans, the

refinery is required to elect a control option that wll
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require the control of all waste streans, or control of
certain select waste streans.

31. Pursuant to Section 113(b) of the CAA, 42 U S.C.
8§7413(b), EPA may commence a civil action for injunctive
relief and civil penalties for violations of the Act, not to
exceed $25,000 per day of violation for violations of the CAA.
Pursuant to Pub. L. 104-134 and 61 Fed. Reg. 69369, civil
penal ties of up to $27,500 per day per violation may be
assessed for violations occurring on or after January 30,
1997.

FI RST CLAI M FOR RELI EF
PSD and NSR Reqgui renents

32. Paragraphs 1 through 31 are reall eged and
i ncorporated by reference.

33. The Defendant owns and operates the 4 petrol eum
refineries identified in Paragraph 6. Petroleumrefining
i nvol ves the physical, thermal and chem cal separation of
crude oil into marketable petrol eum products.

34. EPA has conducted investigations of one or nore of
t he Defendant’s petroleumrefineries, which included site
i nspections, review of permtting history and em ssions data,
and anal ysis of other relevant information concerning Conoco’s

nodi fi cati on and operation of these facilities. The United
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States alleges the follow ng based on the results of EPA s
i nvestigation, informati on and belief:

35. The Defendant’s petroleumrefining process results
in em ssions of significant quantities of criteria air
pol l utants, including nitrogen oxides (“NO”), carbon nonoxide
(“CO), particulate matter (“PM), sulfur dioxide (“S&"), as
wel |l as volatile organic conpounds (“VOCs”) and hazardous air
pol lutants (“HAPs”), including benzene. The primary sources
of these em ssions are the fluid catalytic cracking units
(“FCCUs”), process heaters and boilers, and the sul fur
recovery plants (“SRPs”).

36. The Defendant’s facilities are “petrol eum
refineries” in accordance with Section 169(1) of the CAA 42
US C 8 7479(1), which defines "major emtting facility" for
certain |listed stationary sources as a source with the
potential to emt 100 TPY or nore of any criteria air
pol lutant. Conoco’s petroleumrefineries are major emtting
facilities with the potential to emt in excess of 100 TPY of
NOx, PM and SO, which are listed criteria air pollutants.

37. At all tinmes relevant to this Conplaint, the
following of the Defendant’s refineries were located in an
area that was designated as “Class |I1” under Section 162(b) of

the Act, 42 U S.C. § 7472(b), and that has attained the
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Nati onal Anmbient Air Quality Standards for Ozone, of which NO
is a precursor, SO, and PM under Section 107(d) of the Act,
42 U.S.C. 8§ 7407(d): Denver, Lake Charles, Billings, and
Ponca City.

38. At all tinmes relevant to this Conplaint, and on
numer ous occasi ons since comencenent of operations, the
Def endant has failed to fully and accurately identify the
em ssions fromits petroleumrefineries of one or nore
criteria pollutants.

39. During the tinme period relevant to this Conplaint,

t he Def endant has nodified the FCCU s, heaters and boilers,
and SRPs at their respective petroleumrefineries causing a
significant increase in em ssions of NOx, PM and SO, which
is defined as a “major nodification” within the nmeaning of 40
C.F.R § 52.21(b)(2).

40. Since the major nodification of its petrol eum
refineries, the Defendant has been in violation of Section
165(a) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7475(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 52.21,
and the corresponding state inplenmentation plans, by failing
to undergo PSD and NSR review, by failing to obtain al
appropriate permts, and failing to install the best avail able
control technol ogy and/or the neet the | owest achievable

em ssion rate for the control of NOx, PM and SO em ssi ons
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fromall FCCUs, process heaters and boilers, and sul fur
recovery plants.

41. Unless restrained by an Order of the Court, these
violations of the CAA and the inplenenting regulations wll
conti nue.

42. As provided in 42 U S.C. § 7413(b), the Defendant’s
viol ations, as set forth above, subject it to injunctive
relief and civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day for each
violation of the Act prior to January 31, 1997, and $27, 500
per day for each violation after January 30, 1997, pursuant to
the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990,
28 U.S.C. 8§ 2461, as anended by 31 U S.C. § 3701.

SECOND CLAI M FOR RELI EF
New Source Performance Standards Subpart J

43. Paragraphs 1 through 31 are reall eged and
i ncorporated by reference.

44. EPA has conducted investigations of one or nore of
t he Defendant’s petroleumrefineries, which included site
i nspections, review of permtting history and em ssions data,
and anal ysis of other relevant information concerning Conoco’s
nodi fi cati on and operation of these facilities. The United
States alleges the followi ng based on the results of EPA's

i nvestigation, informati on and belief:

-15-



45. On one or nore occasions, since Decenmber 31, 1996,
the Defendant’s refinery flares have emtted unpermtted
guantities of SO, a criteria air pollutant, under
circunstances that did not represent good air pollution
control practices, in violation of NSPS, 40 C.F.R § 60.11(d).

46. On one or nore occasions, since Decenmber 31, 1996,
the Defendant’s refinery flares have been utilized for
conbustion of refinery fuel gas in violation of NSPS Subpart
J, 40 CF.R 88 60.104, et seq.

47. Unl ess restrained by an Order of the Court, these
viol ations of the Act and the inplenmenting regulations wll
conti nue.

48. As provided in 42 U S.C. § 7413(b), the Defendant’s
violations, as set forth above, subject it to injunctive
relief and civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day for each
violation of the Act prior to January 30, 1997, and $27, 500
per day for each violation after January 30, 1997, pursuant to
the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990,
28 U.S.C. § 2461, as anended by 31 U . S.C. § 3701.

THI RD CLAI M FOR RELI EF
Leak Detection and Repair Requirenents

49. Paragraphs 1 through 31 are reall eged and

i ncorporated by reference.
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50. EPA has conducted investigations of one or nore of
the Defendant’s petroleumrefineries, which included site
i nspections, review of permtting history and em ssions data,
and anal ysis of other relevant information concerning Conoco’s
nodi fi cati on and operation of these facilities. The United
States alleges the follow ng based on the results of EPA' s
i nvestigation, information and belief:

51. The Defendant is required under 40 C.F.R Part 60
Subpart GGG, to conply with standards set forth at 40 C.F. R
§ 60.592, which in turn references standards set forth at 40
C.F.R 88 60.482-1 to 60.482-10, and alternative standards set
forth at 40 C.F.R 88 60.483-1 to 60.483-2, for certain of its
refinery equiprment in VOC service, constructed or nodified
after January 4, 1983,

52. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 60.483-2(b)(1), an owner or
operator of subject VOC valves nust initially conmply with the
| eak detection nmonitoring and repair requirenents set forth in
40 C.F.R. 8 60.482-7, including the use of Standard Method 21
to nonitor for such |eaks.

53. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R Part 61 Subpart J, the
Conpani es are required to conply with the requirenents set
forth in 40 CF.R Part 61, Subpart V, for certain specified

equi pment in benzene service.
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54. On one or nore occasions since Decenmber 31, 1996,
the Defendant failed to accurately nonitor the subject VOC
val ves and ot her conponents at each of its refineries as
requi red by Standard Method 21, to report the VOC val ves and
ot her conponents that were |eaking, and to repair all |eaking
VOC val ves and ot her conponents in a tinely manner.

55. On one or nore occasions, since Decenber 31, 1996,
the Defendant failed to monitor all valves at its petrol eum
refineries in accordance with the above descri bed
requi rements.

56. The Defendant’s acts or om ssions referred to in
Par agraphs 54 and 55 constitute violations of the LDAR

57. Unless restrained by an Order of the Court, the
Def endant’s viol ations of the Act and the inplenmenting
regul ations will continue.

58. As provided in 42 U. S.C. § 7413(b), the Defendant’s
viol ations, as set forth above, subject it to injunctive
relief and civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day for each
violation of the Act prior to January 30, 1997, and $27, 500
per day for each violation after January 30, 1997, pursuant to
the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990,

28 U.S.C. 8§ 2461, as anended by 31 U S.C. § 3701.
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FOURTH CLAI M FOR RELI EF
New Source Performance Standards Subpart OQQ

59. Paragraphs 1 through 31 are reall eged and
i ncor porated by reference.

60. The Billings refinery operates individual drain
systens and an oil water separator that are “affected
facilities” pursuant to 40 C.F. R 860.690(a)(2) and (a)(3).

61. The Billings refinery operates a storm water sewer
system as defined in 40 C.F. R 860. 691.

62. As provided in EPA's regulations at 40 C F. R
860.692-1(d) (1), a stormwater sewer system which is
segregated fromthe process wastewater collection systemis
not subject to the requirements of NSPS Subpart QQQ

63. On August 11, 2000, Conoco reported to the State of
Montana that it had process wastewater entering the storm
wat er sewer systemat the Billings refinery in violation of 40
C.F.R 860.692-1(d)(1).

64. Defendant’s failure to segregate its storm water or
to comply with the standards of performance set forth in
Subpart QQQ constitutes a violation of the Standards of
Performance for VOC Eni ssions From Petrol eum Refinery

Wast ewat er Systens.
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65. Unless restrained by an Order of the Court, the
Def endant’s viol ations of the Act and the inplenmenting
regul ations will continue.

66. As provided in 42 U S.C. 8 7413(b), the Defendant’s
viol ations, as set forth above, subject it to injunctive
relief and civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day for each
violation of the Act prior to January 30, 1997, and $27, 500
per day for each violation after January 30, 1997, pursuant to
the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990,

28 U.S.C. § 2461, as anended by 31 U S.C. § 3701.

PRAYER FOR RELI EF

VWHEREFORE, Plaintiff, the United States, respectfully

requests that this Court:

1. Order the Defendant to imedi ately conply with the
statutory and regulatory requirenments cited in this Conplaint,
under the Clean Air Act;

2. Order the Defendant to take appropriate nmeasures to
mtigate the effects of its violations;

3. Assess civil penalties against the Defendant for up

to the anmobunts provided in the Clean Air Act; and
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4. Grant the United States such other relief as this

Court deens just and proper.

Respectfully subm tted,

JOHN CRUDEN

Acting Assistant Attorney General

Envi ronment and Natural Resources
Di vi si on

U S. Departnment of Justice

DI ANNE SHAWL.EY

Seni or Counsel

Envi ronment al Enforcenment Section
U.S. Departnent of Justice

P. 0. Box 7611

Washi ngton, D.C. 20044-7611

(202) 514-0096
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Mervyn A. Mosbacker
United States Attorney

By:

Gordon M Spei ghts Young

Assi stant United States Attorney
Sout hern District of Texas

P.O 61129

Houst on, TX 77208

OF COUNSEL:

BRENDA MORRI S

Assi st ant Regi onal Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Regi on 8

Denver, Col orado

RUSTY HERBERT

Assi st ant Regi onal Counsel (6RC-EA)
U.S. Environnental Protection Agency
Regi on 6

1445 Ross Avenue

Dal | as, Texas 75202-2733
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